
 

 

 

 

City of Mt. Angel 
 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 

 

October 3, 2016 

 



MT. ANGEL CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
290 East Charles Street – Community Meeting Room 

Monday, October 3, 2016 

Mt. Angel Community Meeting Room is handicapped accessible. If special accommodations are required please contact City Hall at least 

one business day in advance at 503‐845‐9291.  Hearing Impaired may call TTY (800) 648—3458. Interpretive services may be available with 

sufficient prior notice of need.  

 
 

 
7:00 p.m. REGULAR MEETING 
1. Call to Order  
2. Flag Salute  
3. Roll Call 
4. Presentations, Guests, and Announcements 

a.     Domestic Violence Awareness – Marion County D.A. Office, Kim Larsen 
b.     Law Enforcement Intentional use of Deadly Physical Force Response Plan – Chief of Police, 
Mike Healy 

5. Appearance of Interested Citizens - please limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
6. Review Correspondence 
7. Review Written Staff Reports  
8. Review Accounts Payable   
9. Consent Agenda 

a.  Approve City Council Workshop Minutes for September 6, 2016 
b.  Approve City Council Meeting Minutes for September 6, 2016  

10. Unfinished Business 
a.    Republic Services Rate Increase - A RESOLUTION GRANTING A RATE INCREASE OF 
11.8% TO REPUBLIC SERVICES OF MARION COUNTY, OREGON (FORMERLY ALLIED 
WASTE OF MARION COUNTY, OREGON) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FRANCHISE 
APPROVED AS ORDINANCE 704. 

11. New Business 
a.    Repeal of Marijuana Tax Ordinance - AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE 741 
ESTABLISHING A TAX ON THE SALE OF MARIJUANA AND MARIJUANA-INFUSED 
PRODUCTS IN THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL AND REPEALING CHAPTER 116 OF THE 
MT. ANGEL MUNCIPAL CODE. 
b.    Business License Ordinance - AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LICENSES UPON 
TRADES, SHOPS, OCCUPATIONS, PROFESSIONS, BUSINESSES, AND CALLINGS FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF REVENUE AND REGULATION; PROVIDING FOR THE METHOD 
OF ISSUING LICENSES; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF. 
c.    City Manager Contract 
d.    Addendum to IGA for Municipal Judge 
e.    Healthcare for Represented Employees 
f.    Discussion of Future Agenda Items 

12.  City Manager’s Report   
13.  Councilor/Committee Reports          
14.  Mayor’s Report 
15.  Adjournment   



 

 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
FOR THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

 
 
 

In the matter of proclaiming  ) 
October 2016 as Domestic Violence ) 
Awareness Month   ) 
 

Proclamation 
 

Whereas, the crime of domestic violence is not just a personal or family issue but, instead, is an issue that 
belongs to and impacts our community as a whole; and 
 
Whereas, we know, as individuals, we can make a difference by speaking up and reaching out to help 
victims and survivors; and 
 
Whereas, eleven people in Marion County have been murdered in the past five years as a result of 
domestic violence; with 8 of these involving the use of a firearm; and 
 
Whereas, the Marion County District Attorney’s office received 1,194 law enforcement reports of 
domestic violence last year; and  
 
Whereas, the Center for Hope and Safety received 20,887 contacts to their program last year and 
provided 4,764 nights of shelter to 205 individuals; with nearly one half of those sheltered being children; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Marion County Victim Assistance Division provided services to 1,392 victims of domestic 
violence last year, supporting them in making choices for their safety and giving them a voice in the 
criminal justice process. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor Otte, and the city of Mt. Angel proclaim October 2016 as 
 

Domestic Violence Awareness Month 
 

And resolve to honor those who have died and acknowledge those who have survived by supporting 
meaningful services that create safety for survivors in our community.  
 
 DATED this 3rd day of October 2016. 
 
      

Item #4a

Page 3 of 65



Item #4b

Page 4 of 65



Item #4b

Page 5 of 65



Item #4b

Page 6 of 65



Item #4b

Page 7 of 65



Item #4b

Page 8 of 65



Item #4b

Page 9 of 65



Item #4b

Page 10 of 65



Item #4b

Page 11 of 65



Item #4b

Page 12 of 65



Item #4b

Page 13 of 65



Item #4b

Page 14 of 65



Item #4b

Page 15 of 65



 

 

 

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

October 2016 

Department    
Reports 

 
 
 
 
 

Item #7

Page 16 of 65



 

Mike Healy 
Interim City Manager 
mhealy@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9294 
 
 

Employee Insurance Negotiations Update 

City attorney Diana Moffat is working with the Unions to reach an agreement on healthcare coverage. As of 

now, it appears that both unions have agreed to Co Pay Plan A (Regence) with the Alternative Care Rider, 

and status quo on Kaiser with the addition of the Alternative Care rider. The reason for the addition of the 

alternative care rider is that alternative care was previously provided under the plan formerly offer by 

Regence. Diana is currently working on language regarding what would happen if these two insurance plans 

go away during the life of the agreement, which is very unlikely and should have the agreement language 

finalized shortly. She will provide the Council with a cost breakdown comparing the current year to next 

year.  

 

Casselle Training 

City Staff completed training for the Caselle service order module. This will be more efficient for Public 

Works and City Hall as far as preparing and send/receiving service orders and will greatly assist in tracking 

the requests. 

 

Water Service Application Update 

Despite staff’s relentless efforts, they have been unable to make contact with 18 water accounts, who are at 

risk with having their water shutoff.  

  

 

ADMINISTRATION  

 

Item #7

Page 17 of 65



 

Justin Hogue 
Assistant to the City Manager 
jhogue@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9291 
 
 
Development Code Update 
The Planning Commission and City Council met September 27th in a joint workshop meeting with Angelo 
Planning Group to discuss proposed amendments to the Development Code. The next step will be to hold 
a public hearing with the Planning Commission to approve the draft Development Code. 
 
Permits 
The number of permits applied for has significantly decreased this month, however, several building permits 
were issued for interior remodels. With the release of the Mt. Angel School District’s building permits, 
construction has resumed on the counseling center at the high school and work has now commenced on a 
new athletic entrance at high school.  
 
Heritage Trail Committee 
City staff and other members of the Heritage Trail Committee met with an Oregon Community Foundation 
(OCF) grant evaluator in a follow up meeting to present the concept of the project and elaborate on what 
the group is attempting to accomplish. The grant application submitted to OCF is requesting $15,000 for 
sign kiosks that will be located throughout the city at various culturally and historically significant sites.  
 
Planning 
Staff continues to monitor ongoing projects such as the construction efforts for Grandview.  
 
City Programs 
Three citizens participated in the sidewalk repair program over the summer.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

Item #7

Page 18 of 65



 

Carrie Alexandria Caster 
Library Director 
ccaster@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-6401 
 
 
Shifting of Adult Fiction, Large Print, Westerns, Paperbacks and Teens 
We were very busy during our closure for Oktoberfest and used the time for shifting and rearranging 
materials in several areas. We shifted thousands of books in the adult fiction area to improve the flow of 
materials and eliminate a confusing arrangement of books to make it easier for patrons to intuitively find 
materials. We revamped our new books section, creating a new nonfiction and new paperback fiction area 
next to our new hardcover fiction area. We also moved our large print and western books to create new 
display areas. This was a huge effort and we are very pleased with the results, and we’ve already gotten great 
positive feedback from patrons about these changes.  
 
New Teen Scene Area Debuts 
During our closure we also tackled another big project requiring a lot of shifting of materials in our 
Teen/Young Adult area. In order to make this a more distinct teen space, we moved adult paperbacks out 
of the area around the edges of the stacks and instead moved all teen materials to the area closest to the 
Community Room. This has the effect of creating a teen space (Teen Scene) with a new area for display of 
new materials, programming guides and other resources for teens, we hope to grow with things such as 
scholarship information and more. In addition, we have a new thematic display space for teens in our Teen 
Advisory Board (TAB) to use to create book displays during the year. We have a fun Banned Books Week 
display in place now, and we have also added a whiteboard for teens to use to interact and share their 
thoughts and opinions in response to questions or prompts, as an ongoing passive program for youth. We’ll 
also be adding a rotating exhibit area of teen art near the new book display. We are so excited to have 
created a teen space (with the limits of our building’s configuration) and have had lots of positive reviews 
from teens! 
 
Teen Programs and TAB Applications  
Teen programs this month will include a Teen Scary Movie showing of “Beetlejuice” as well as a DIY duct 
tape pencil bag workshop. In addition, we are gathering entries for a Teen Reads Week bookmark contest. 
Applications for this year’s Teen Advisory Board (TAB) are being reviewed and our new board will start 
meeting next month.  
 
Fall Programs are Back 
Fall Children’s programs have kicked back into high gear, with our weekly offerings including Storytime 
Artists (which will rotate with Science Time and Kids Crafting programs), as well as Lego Club, Toddler 
Storytime, Indoor Playtime, and Read to the Dogs. In addition, we are offering weekly Homework Help and 
movie showings every couple of weeks. In addition, October has a few extra programs planned as well, 
including our Dia de Los Muertos Sugar Skull Crafting program and our Family Halloween Program, as well 
as a Rinkitink in Oz performance by local artist and costumer Karyl Carlson. We also will be trying out an 
All Ages Storytime on a Saturday in October as a way to reach patrons who may not be able to attend 
during the week. 
 
 
 
 

LIBRARY 

Item #7

Page 19 of 65



 

Food for Fines Planned for November 
We are bringing back our popular Food for Fines program for the second year, this time in November to 
coincide with the start of the holiday giving season. We are planning to hold Food for Fines this year the 
week of November 15th-19th. Patrons will be able to donate food items and have their overdue fines 
reduced; the food collected will go to help needy people in our community.  
 
Plans for Hazelnut Fest 
Stephanie and Carrie met with Maureen Ernst of the Chamber of Commerce of the Hazelnut Fest to plan 
the library’s participation in this year’s community festival which was so successful next year. We will be 
hosting The Children’s Corner with a fun new selection of activities for children, and are excited to be 
creating special themed backpacks of books which will be raffled off as a fundraiser for the library. In 
addition, the Chamber was excited to support our idea of giving out free books to all the children who 
complete their festival cookie passport (purchased with funds from the Chamber), so we believe this will be 
a great chance to provide great books and to do outreach about library programs, while celebrating our 
community and supporting increased tourism to and interest in our town.  
 
Circulation/Patron Visits Stats 
 
Items circulated in August 2016: 3273   (August 2015: 2297) 
                              July 2016: 3434 (July 2015: 2457) 
 
Patron visits in August 2016: 1181     (August 2015: 1043) 
Patron visits in July 2016: 1584 (July 2015: 870) 
Patron visits in June 2016: 1260 (June 2015: 943) 
Patron visits in May 2016: 1171 (May 2015: 1027) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item #7

Page 20 of 65



 

Michael D. Healy 

Chief of Police 
mhealy@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-9294 
 
 
School Resource Officer 
Now that Oktoberfest has concluded, Officer Charlie Hall is back in the schools for another year.  He was 
kept on patrol through the festival so we could have him serve as the night-shift supervisor. 
 
Oktoberfest 
This year’s festival went fairly smoothly.  The religious zealots/protesters added some wrinkles to the 
festival.  Overall we had 3 custodial arrests and responded to 95 calls for service related to the festival. 
 
Holding Cell Damage 
One of the subjects we arrested over the O’Fest weekend did some serious damage to our holding cell by 
kicking the cage portion.  He actually broke the area where the cage was fastened to the wall.  The damage 
has rendered the holding cell unusable until it’s fixed.  We are having contractors in for estimates.  We have 
requested to receive reimbursement via the court during the subject’s prosecution. 
 
Staff Training 
Officer Anela Javor has started the Oregon Basic Police Academy.  She is scheduled to graduate in mid-
December.  However, she came back to work the weekend of the Oktoberfest.   
 
Personnel Recruitments 
We are still recruiting for reserve officers and one full-time officer.   The next step for the three remaining 
reserve candidates will be a background, physical and a psychological screening.    
 
Assistance to Other Agency 
Also during the festival, Sgt. Charpilloz used the “Lojack” system in one of our patrol cars to track down a 
stolen excavator out of Clackamas County.  It was located outside of Silverton.  He worked with the 
Clackamas County Sheriff’s office so they could recover the vehicle.  Once Jeff led them to the residence, 
Clackamas County also recovered three more pieces of heavy equipment that was stolen in the same case.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

POLICE 

Item #7

Page 21 of 65



 

Dan Bernt 
Public Works Superintendent 
dbernt@ci.mt-angel.or.us 
503-845-6260 
 
 

Water Department 

 We repaired a large water leak off the 8" main line on the upper end of Academy Street.                                                                               

 We continue work on the well depth telemetry at well #7. A new circuit board should arrive and be 

installed shortly.                                  

 We did 5 water service flow tests.                                                       

 We investigated a water supply issue at Mt. Angel Towers. It turned out to be an interior issue with 

their plumbing.                                                            

 We repaired a water service at 495 Birch Street.                                 

 We did 6 delinquency shut offs.                                                                  

 We collected 4 routine water samples.                                                    

 We did numerous special meter reads, stops, and starts.                          

 We witnessed the pressure testing on the public water lines at the Grandview Estates project.                                                                       

 We installed a water meter for new construction, replaced several stopped meters, and replaced a 

couple of meter boxes.                     

 Warranty work was done on one of the 20 hp discharge pumps. 

Sewer Department                                                                          

 Cascade Earth Sciences was in to collect samples from the monitoring wells around the perimeter of 

the WWTP.                       

 We replaced the pump for the domestic waste from the laboratory building at the WWTP.                                                  

 Service work was done on the Chlorine and Sulfur Dioxide injection system at the WWTP.                                                           

 We installed screens on two wetlands collection boxes.                   

 We continue monitoring the waste water collection system.           

 We are reviewing the results of this year’s smoke testing of sanitary sewer basins 2 & 3. We will 

begin addressing several issues noted in the report.                                                                       

 Trapping and vegetation control continue at the WWTP. 

 

Parks Department                     

 Parks mowing continues. Parks irrigation has been suspended now that autumn is here. We continue 

with vegetation control and tree and bush trimming in the parks.                                                                                 

 We are working on design work for potential irrigation systems for the soft ball and soccer fields at 

Ebner Park. 

 

         

                                                                   

PUBLIC WORKS 

Item #7

Page 22 of 65



 

Streets Department                                                                          

 Yellow curb painting continues.                                                                

 The street sweeper was out 4 times in September.                            

 We did tree trimming along R.R. Avenue.                                             

 We are monitoring work on the storm water trunk line along the Fire District property. This line will 

become part of the City's storm water system when it is complete.                                                     

 We did some pothole patching and some street rock work.                       

 We did numerous O'fest related tasks. Reset one school zone sign on Taylor Street that was broke 

off during O'fest. We also changed out several other signs.                                                             

 We have started on storm line jetting and basin vacuuming. 

Other 

 We worked on a wall hung sign for the senior center on several occasions.                                                                                                    

 We hanged a white board in the library and checked on an issue with the automatic door opener.                                                      

 John attended the City safety committee meeting.                                

 We did many utility locates.                                                                        

 We continue to monitor several smaller development projects. 

 

Item #7

Page 23 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     1

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

911 Supply

1063 911 Supply 42976 Uniforms/Charpilloz 09/01/2016 79.99 01-02-62575  Uniforms

          Total 911 Supply: 79.99

ABIQUA LANDSCAPE PRODUCTS

12699 ABIQUA LANDSCAPE PRODUC 6790 3 lads of barkdust for City hall & Library area 08/25/2016 180.00 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

12699 ABIQUA LANDSCAPE PRODUC 6817 Bardust for Library area 08/29/2016 60.00 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total ABIQUA LANDSCAPE PRODUCTS: 240.00

ACCESS

12971 ACCESS 20186887 Shredding services/monthly 08/31/2016 18.55 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

12971 ACCESS 20186887 Shredding services/monthly 08/31/2016 18.55 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total ACCESS: 37.10

AIRGAS USA, INC

1225 AIRGAS USA, INC 9939011406 Cylinder rental @ WWTP 08/31/2016 116.19 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

1225 AIRGAS USA, INC 9939011406 Cylinder rental/water dept 08/31/2016 17.64 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total AIRGAS USA, INC: 133.83

AMERICAN TRANSPARENCY

13031 AMERICAN TRANSPARENCY SEPT2016 Refund: public records request 09/22/2016 15.00 01-00-40620  ADMIN City Licenses & Fe

          Total AMERICAN TRANSPARENCY: 15.00

Aspen Wildlife Services, LLC

1545 Aspen Wildlife Services, LLC 46 Wildlife mgmt program/monthly 09/05/2016 375.00 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Aspen Wildlife Services, LLC: 375.00

AT&T

1580 AT&T 39 modems/police vehicles 09/05/2016 168.36 01-02-62532  Communication Services

Item #8

Page 24 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     2

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total AT&T: 168.36

Baker & Taylor Books

1710 Baker & Taylor Books 4011683000 Audiobooks 08/16/2016 46.33 01-05-62474  Audio Visuals and CD's

1710 Baker & Taylor Books 4011683554 Books 08/17/2016 157.82 01-05-62461  New Books

1710 Baker & Taylor Books 4011685592 Books 08/19/2016 85.92 01-05-62595  Childrens Program

1710 Baker & Taylor Books 4011694915 Books 08/30/2016 48.61 01-05-62461  New Books

          Total Baker & Taylor Books: 338.68

Bochsler Hardware

2090 Bochsler Hardware SEPT2016 Foam spray, distilled water 08/31/2016 30.87 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

2090 Bochsler Hardware SEPT2016 Driveway sealer 08/31/2016 17.99 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

2090 Bochsler Hardware SEPT2016 Grass seed, basketball nets, hose fittings. bee spray, trash can 08/31/2016 67.86 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

2090 Bochsler Hardware SEPT2016 Pellets, buckets for National Night Out 08/31/2016 19.45 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

2090 Bochsler Hardware SEPT2016 Paper towels, bucket for SRP 08/31/2016 4.18 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

2090 Bochsler Hardware SEPT2016 Fly strips for entrance area City Hall 08/31/2016 1.50 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total Bochsler Hardware: 141.85

BOLI

2170 BOLI SEPT2016 Main, E. college & monroe project 08/30/2016 250.00 26-26-64040  Collection Improve-I&I Proj

          Total BOLI: 250.00

BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL46363 Public works fuel by dept. 08/31/2016 163.42 25-25-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL46363 Public works fuel by dept. 08/31/2016 122.91 11-11-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL46363 Public works fuel by dept. 08/31/2016 105.21 26-26-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL46363 Public works fuel by dept. 08/31/2016 76.97 01-06-62790  Vehicle Operation

12947 BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY CL46363 Police Dept fuel 08/31/2016 718.23 01-02-62790  Vehicle Operation

          Total BRETTHAUER OIL COMPANY: 1,186.74

CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVICES

7750 CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVI 53 Public restrooms/monthly 09/05/2016 345.00 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total CATHOLIC COMMUNITY SERVICES: 345.00

Item #8

Page 25 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     3

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT

12981 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT 1408998 New large print books 08/31/2016 266.04 01-05-62461  New Books

          Total CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT: 266.04

CENTURY LINK

12583 CENTURY LINK 153 503-845-2720/WWTP long dis. 09/05/2016 1.93 26-26-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 153 845-6260,2852,PWorks 09/05/2016 .15 25-25-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 153 lines,9291,9292,6261 09/05/2016 6.87 01-01-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 153 845-6401/library long dist. 09/05/2016 .78 01-05-62430  Telephone

12583 CENTURY LINK 153 40009294,9848, Pdept long dist 09/05/2016 11.61 01-02-62430  Telephone

          Total CENTURY LINK: 21.34

City of Silverton

2960 City of Silverton 62 PD dispatch services 09/05/2016 23.12 01-02-62530  Dispatch Services

          Total City of Silverton: 23.12

Clackamas Community College

3010 Clackamas Community College SEPT2016 TRAINING/cross connection/DS 09/19/2016 85.00 25-25-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

3010 Clackamas Community College SEPT2016 TRAINING/Water Backflow class 09/19/2016 85.00 25-25-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

          Total Clackamas Community College: 170.00

Cliff's Engine Center

3070 Cliff's Engine Center 25855 Pole saw replacement cap & fuel treatment 08/03/2016 22.94 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Cliff's Engine Center: 22.94

C-MORE PIPE SERVICES CO.

3100 C-MORE PIPE SERVICES CO. 16-1528 Smoke testing on Sanitary sewer system, Basins 2 & 3 09/09/2016 4,220.72 26-26-64030  System Improvements

          Total C-MORE PIPE SERVICES CO.: 4,220.72

Day Wireless Systems

3610 Day Wireless Systems SEPT2016 Radio rentals/O'fest 09/13/2016 552.00 01-07-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total Day Wireless Systems: 552.00

Item #8

Page 26 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     4

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

DEMCO

3710 DEMCO 5940646 Book covers 08/22/2016 51.81 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total DEMCO: 51.81

Department of Environmental Quality

12884 Department of Environmental Qua SEPT2016 Wasterwater treatment II test 09/22/2016 270.00 26-26-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

12884 Department of Environmental Qua SEPT2016 Wastewater collection II test 09/22/2016 270.00 26-26-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

          Total Department of Environmental Quality: 540.00

ENGINEERED CONTROL PRODUCTS

4410 ENGINEERED CONTROL PROD 63469 Annual service & repair on WWTP SO2/CL2 injection systems 09/06/2016 3,693.18 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total ENGINEERED CONTROL PRODUCTS: 3,693.18

FARMERS TOILET CO.

4610 FARMERS TOILET CO. 49 Portable toilets/Parks 09/05/2016 249.00 01-06-62760  Utilities

          Total FARMERS TOILET CO.: 249.00

Fleck, Don R

4740 Fleck, Don R 2016-09 Battery for AED @ Senior center 09/12/2016 149.50 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total Fleck, Don R: 149.50

G. CAM LTD

12873 G. CAM LTD SEPT2016 Refund/utility account/910 Grant 09/01/2006 14.12 25-25-10700  Water Deposits

          Total G. CAM LTD: 14.12

GLOCKENSPIEL RESTAURANT

12834 GLOCKENSPIEL RESTAURANT SEPT2016 Linens rental for Ofest command center 09/12/2016 116.16 01-07-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total GLOCKENSPIEL RESTAURANT: 116.16

GONZALEZ, SARA

13029 GONZALEZ, SARA SEPT2015 Refund: Park rental deposit 09/14/2016 25.00 01-06-62528  Park Reservation Return D

          Total GONZALEZ, SARA: 25.00

Item #8

Page 27 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     5

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE

5195 GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE 11939 Oil change unit #01 08/17/2016 82.69 01-02-62550  Vehicle Repairs

5195 GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE 11990 Unit # 01 Alternator repair 09/08/2016 405.62 01-02-62550  Vehicle Repairs

          Total GREG'S AUTOMOTIVE: 488.31

Hall, Michele Lynn

5350 Hall, Michele Lynn 3 Consultant svs/minutes 09/10/2016 72.00 01-01-62525  Consultant Services

          Total Hall, Michele Lynn: 72.00

Hi-School Pharmacy

5660 Hi-School Pharmacy SEPT2016 Pipe fittings & thread compound 08/25/2016 37.57 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Hi-School Pharmacy: 37.57

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL

6142 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 79734 New gearbox for 72" mower deck 08/09/2016 758.05 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL: 758.05

KORECKI, JOHN

12767 KORECKI, JOHN SEPT2016 Reimbursement: lodging and mileage for training 09/02/2016 473.36 26-26-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

          Total KORECKI, JOHN: 473.36

Laborers' Local 483

6510 Laborers' Local 483 SEPT2016 Union Dues/PWorks(employee paid)monthly 09/13/2016 433.96 01-00-20635  Accrued Union Dues

          Total Laborers' Local 483: 433.96

LAING, STEPHANIE

12937 LAING, STEPHANIE SEPT2016 Freezer paper, felt, foamboard(teen program) 09/06/2016 26.85 01-05-62595  Childrens Program

          Total LAING, STEPHANIE: 26.85

Marion County Building Inspect

6970 Marion County Building Inspect 09012016MA BUILDING PERMIT FEES/August 2016 09/01/2016 918.97 01-04-62527  Bldg Permits Marion Count

          Total Marion County Building Inspect: 918.97

Item #8

Page 28 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     6

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

Marion County Treasurer

7050 Marion County Treasurer SEPT2016 JAIL ASSESSMENT/August 2016 09/16/2016 78.20 01-03-62520  Assessments

          Total Marion County Treasurer: 78.20

MARSHALL, EMILY

13022 MARSHALL, EMILY SEPT2016 LEDS conference reimbursments/mileage, meals 09/07/2016 226.68 01-02-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

          Total MARSHALL, EMILY: 226.68

Mid-Willamette Council of Gov

7440 Mid-Willamette Council of Gov 1617101 PAR2016-01(1085 Academy, Halter plat review) 09/08/2016 197.50 01-04-62515  Planning Fees

7440 Mid-Willamette Council of Gov 1617101 SDR/VAR2016-01(555 N. Main st) 09/08/2016 12.50 01-04-62515  Planning Fees

7440 Mid-Willamette Council of Gov 1617101 Reg. planning ser/DARP2016-01(Abbey brewery, GIS mapping/filing, Kennedy sch 09/08/2016 752.89 01-04-62515  Planning Fees

          Total Mid-Willamette Council of Gov: 962.89

Moonlight Maintenance, Inc.

7590 Moonlight Maintenance, Inc. 152 City Hall cleaning 09/05/2016 218.00 01-01-62460  Building  Maintenance

7590 Moonlight Maintenance, Inc. 153 Police Dept. cleaning/monthly 09/05/2016 264.00 01-02-62460  Building Maintenance

7590 Moonlight Maintenance, Inc. 154 Library cleaning/monthly 09/10/2016 216.00 01-05-62460  Building Maintenance

          Total Moonlight Maintenance, Inc.: 698.00

Mt Angel Police Association

12582 Mt Angel Police Association SEPT2016 Union dues/emp paid/monthly 09/13/2016 330.00 01-00-20635  Accrued Union Dues

          Total Mt Angel Police Association: 330.00

Mt Angel Telephone Company

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 449 WWTP 2 lines+internet 09/05/2016 123.34 26-26-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 450 City Well 09/05/2016 59.23 25-25-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 451 PWShops 2 lines+internet/split 09/05/2016 94.02 25-25-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 451 PWShops 2 lines+internet/split 09/05/2016 23.50 11-11-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 452 City Hall Fax 09/05/2016 48.23 01-01-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 453 Library phone 09/05/2016 39.93 01-05-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 454 Pdept 911 line 09/10/2016 33.76 01-02-62530  Dispatch Services

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 455 City Hall, 2 lines 09/05/2016 108.01 01-01-62430  Telephone

7820 Mt Angel Telephone Company 456 Police Dept lines 09/05/2016 155.49 01-02-62430  Telephone

Item #8

Page 29 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     7

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Mt Angel Telephone Company: 685.51

Mt Angel Vol Fireman's Assoc

7830 Mt Angel Vol Fireman's Assoc SEPT2016 Deposit refund/park rental 09/12/2016 25.00 01-06-62528  Park Reservation Return D

          Total Mt Angel Vol Fireman's Assoc: 25.00

NAPA Auto Parts

7910 NAPA Auto Parts SEPT2016 V belts for dump truck 08/25/2016 34.08 25-25-62790  Vehicle Operation

7910 NAPA Auto Parts SEPT2016 Lamp for tall light in sweeper 08/25/2016 4.22 11-11-62790  Vehicle Operation

7910 NAPA Auto Parts SEPT2016 Fasteners for WWTP 08/25/2016 14.00 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

7910 NAPA Auto Parts SEPT2016 Gear oil for mowing tractor 08/25/2016 4.97 01-06-62790  Vehicle Operation

          Total NAPA Auto Parts: 57.27

NEES, CINDY

13027 NEES, CINDY SEPT2016 Refund park rental deposit 09/12/2016 25.00 01-06-62528  Park Reservation Return D

          Total NEES, CINDY: 25.00

Northwest Natural Gas Co.

8210 Northwest Natural Gas Co. 97 City Hall bldg,split w/pdept 09/05/2016 11.32 01-01-62760  Utilities

8210 Northwest Natural Gas Co. 97 City Hall bldg,split w/pdept 09/05/2016 11.32 01-02-62760  Utilities

8210 Northwest Natural Gas Co. 98 Library building 09/10/2016 15.72 01-05-62760  Utilities

          Total Northwest Natural Gas Co.: 38.35

One Call Concepts, Inc

8460 One Call Concepts, Inc 6080436 Utility locating notification fees/monthly 08/31/2016 25.08 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total One Call Concepts, Inc: 25.08

Oregon Department of Revenue

8610 Oregon Department of Revenue DEPT2016 State Assessments/august 2016 09/16/2016 198.80 01-03-62520  Assessments

          Total Oregon Department of Revenue: 198.80

Oregon Meter Repair

8740 Oregon Meter Repair 120314 4" compound meter for Grandview estates project 09/08/2016 3,065.00 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

8740 Oregon Meter Repair 120317 2 new 1" meters 09/16/2016 240.00 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

Item #8

Page 30 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     8

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Oregon Meter Repair: 3,305.00

PGE

9220 PGE 868 Street Lights Contract 09/25/2016 1,632.42 11-11-62910  Street Lighting Contract

          Total PGE: 1,632.42

Republic Services #456

1310 Republic Services #456 53 Garbage services/monthly 09/05/2016 92.20 25-25-62760  Utilities

          Total Republic Services #456: 92.20

RODRIGUEZ, VIRGINIA

13023 RODRIGUEZ, VIRGINIA SEPT2016 Sidewalk repair program reimbursement 09/01/2016 250.00 12-12-62831  Sidewalk Repair 50/50 Pro

          Total RODRIGUEZ, VIRGINIA: 250.00

Sherman, Richard

13024 Sherman, Richard SEPT2016 Sidewalk repair program reimbursement 09/01/2016 1,957.50 12-12-62831  Sidewalk Repair 50/50 Pro

          Total Sherman, Richard: 1,957.50

Silverton Sand and Gravel

10680 Silverton Sand and Gravel 55935 Drainrock for stormline inlet 09/01/2016 245.00 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total Silverton Sand and Gravel: 245.00

SMART APPLE MEDIA

13030 SMART APPLE MEDIA G126558 Children's books 09/07/2016 56.90 01-05-62595  Childrens Program

          Total SMART APPLE MEDIA: 56.90

SPEER HOYT, LLC

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 36854-57 Police bargaining 08/31/2016 56.10 01-02-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 36854-57 Maijuana & misc 08/31/2016 149.60 01-01-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 36854-57 Liuna bargaining 08/31/2016 300.00 01-01-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 36854-57 Liuna bargaining 08/31/2016 300.00 11-11-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 36854-57 Liuna bargaining 08/31/2016 1,200.75 25-25-62500  Attorney Fees

10795 SPEER HOYT, LLC 36854-57 Liuna bargaining 08/31/2016 1,200.75 26-26-62500  Attorney Fees

Item #8

Page 31 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     9

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total SPEER HOYT, LLC: 3,207.20

SPENCER, DANIEL

13025 SPENCER, DANIEL SEPT2016 Lodging for City mgr recruitment interview 08/24/2016 123.27 01-01-62510  City Council Expense

          Total SPENCER, DANIEL: 123.27

STATESMAN JOURNAL

13026 STATESMAN JOURNAL 0004565648 Public notice for Maijuana tax ballot title 08/01/2016 185.34 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total STATESMAN JOURNAL: 185.34

SUPPLYWORKS

1380 SUPPLYWORKS 377325329 Paper towels 09/02/2016 39.67 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

1380 SUPPLYWORKS 378186498 Flushometer control valves for public restrooms 09/13/2016 160.56 01-06-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

1380 SUPPLYWORKS 378186498 2 cases paper towels for shop 09/13/2016 172.79 25-25-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

          Total SUPPLYWORKS: 373.02

US Bancorp Service Center

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Training OACP(chief H) 08/25/2016 125.00 01-02-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Amazon: Office supplies 08/25/2016 194.00 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Cherry City: Steel grate for stormwater trunkline inlet 08/25/2016 42.00 11-11-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 ACE septic: Waste pump & fittings for lab @ WWTP 08/25/2016 819.10 26-26-62730  Maintenance & Supplies

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Amazon: new books 08/25/2016 168.53 01-05-62461  New Books

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Amazon: Childrens program 08/25/2016 355.89 01-05-62595  Childrens Program

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Target: Audio visuals/cd's 08/25/2016 113.93 01-05-62474  Audio Visuals and CD's

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 USPS: postage expense 08/25/2016 10.92 01-05-62440  Postage

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Costco: supplies, ink 08/25/2016 106.54 01-05-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Oregon Library Assoc: Training 08/25/2016 5.00 01-05-62595  Childrens Program

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 OAPA: Planner network meeting(Justin) 08/25/2016 50.00 01-06-62535  Travel,Training,Certificatio

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 OMFOA: Job posting for Finance Director 08/25/2016 75.00 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

11810 US Bancorp Service Center SEPT2016 Wild Iris Flower shop: Condolence flowers for Chaunee S 08/25/2016 85.00 01-01-62510  City Council Expense

          Total US Bancorp Service Center: 2,150.91

Village Print Shop

12040 Village Print Shop SEPT2016 Business cards/Javor 08/01/2016 42.00 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

12040 Village Print Shop SEPT2016 Window envelopes(2000) 08/01/2016 151.00 01-01-62420  Supplies & Services

Item #8

Page 32 of 65



City of Mt Angel Payment Approval Report - For council packet(by vendor) Page:     10

Report dates: 8/30/2016-9/26/2016 Sep 26, 2016  12:30PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Invoice Amount GL Account and Title

          Total Village Print Shop: 193.00

Waterlab Corporation

12150 Waterlab Corporation 70102 rountine water sample analysis/monthly 09/07/2016 120.00 25-25-62755  Laboratory Testing

          Total Waterlab Corporation: 120.00

Westech Engineering, Inc.

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21761 Bidding services for annaul ani sewer I & I project 08/31/2016 1,029.50 26-26-64040  Collection Improve-I&I Proj

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21764 P2015-01/CUP2015-03,04/SDR2015-03-04(Grandview) reimbursed by applicants 08/31/2016 603.50 01-04-62516  Engineering Fees

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21764 Reg. planning services, DARP 2016-02(Brewery) 08/31/2016 583.50 01-04-62516  Engineering Fees

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21764 PWA2016-01(Otto/Sherman st), reimbursed by applicant 08/31/2016 189.00 01-04-62516  Engineering Fees

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21764 PAR2016-01(1085 Academy) 08/31/2016 661.50 01-04-62516  Engineering Fees

12260 Westech Engineering, Inc. 21764 SCA Grant assistance 08/31/2016 1,306.50 11-11-62916  Consultant Services

          Total Westech Engineering, Inc.: 4,373.50

WILLIAMS, CRYSTAL

13028 WILLIAMS, CRYSTAL SEPT2016 Marion county map for PD 09/13/2016 49.50 01-02-62420  Supplies & Services

          Total WILLIAMS, CRYSTAL: 49.50

          Grand Totals:  38,301.09

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Item #8

Page 33 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

City of Mt. Angel 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

                           

CITY COUNCIL                              September 6, 2016        6:30 PM                                  
 

The Mt. Angel City Council met in a joint session with the Planning Commission in the Community 

Meeting Room, 290 E. Charles Street, Mt. Angel, Oregon.  

1. CALL TO ORDER: The joint session of the City Council and Planning Commission was called to 
order at 6:32 p.m. by Mayor Otte. 

 
2. FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Otte led the salute to the flag.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: 

 
COUNCIL    STAFF  
Andrew Otte, Mayor      Mike Healy, Interim City Manager 
Kelly Grassman, Council President  Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager 
Darren Beyer, Councilor                         
Ray Eder, Councilor     
Don Fleck, Councilor     
Pete Wall, Councilor                

      Karl Bischoff, Councilor 
 
      PLANNING COMMISSION 
      David Sylvia, Commissioner 
      Ryan Kleinschmidt, Commissioner 
      Craig Emch, Commissioner 
      Henry Schacher, Commissioner 

Greg Savage, Commissioner (arrived 7:00) 
 
4. Joint Meeting with Planning Commission to review Development Code Update 

Cathy Corliss a principal partner with Angelo Planning Group gave a PowerPoint presentation on the 
progress being made on the Development Code update; reviewing what has been done already, where 
the project currently stands, and what is yet to be accomplished before the final product is ready for 
public hearing. 
 
Ms. Corliss explained some of the changes that have been made since she has taken the project over 
and suggestions that have formulated with continued discussion about the project. 
 
Ms. Corliss then reviewed the information that Angelo Planning Group provided in the meeting 
packet. 
 
Commissioner Craig Emch asked what the process might be to facilitate further discussion on areas 
that the Planning Commission or Council might have questions about.   Ms. Corliss said that there will 

Item #9a

Page 34 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

be public comment and public hearings held on the draft and some of the minor issues can be 
addressed there.  If there are major changes or there are items that Angelo Planning Group has added 
as far as new Code language that the Planning Commission and City Council do not want changed, 
then they can be discussed in work sessions such as this.   Mr. Emch was appreciative, he just wants to 
make sure that the flavor of Mt. Angel is maintained and that the issues that have been identified by 
City staff, the Planning Commission, and City Council are addressed.   
 
Commissioner Kleinschmidt asked about a long rectangular lot that someone wanted to develop. He 
was concerned about the proposed structure being orientated in way that allows the side yard to 
function as a rear yard.  He wanted to know if there could be language addressing situations such as 
that in the updated Code.  Ms. Corliss confirmed what the concern was and she said she will review 
the language and make sure the issue is addressed.  Commissioner Kleinschmidt said there are some 
deep lots in town and he is concerned they will use the side yard for the backyard and circumvent rear 
yard setback requirements.   
 
Mayor Otte had a question about a change from 10 days to 30 days for staff to respond to Type II and 
III applications.  Ms. Corliss explained that the change is consistent with state statutes and takes into 
account that additional staff time may be necessary for a complete review, however, that does not 
preclude internal goals of processing requests quickly. Currently, Type I applications are allotted 30 
days for a completeness review. 
 
Councilor Grassman asked that language regarding the Design Review Board be further explained.  
Ms. Corliss explained that their role was very unclear and opened it up to an unclear appeal process.  
The new language officially recognizes them as an advisory body either to staff or the Planning 
Commission depending on the application.  Councilor Grassman said she appreciated the new 
language. 
 
Commissioner Emch stated that the current Code addresses projections in Section 7 and he would like 
to eliminate any conflicts between projects and setbacks. He also recommended either a footnote or 
asterisk in the section regarding setbacks to refer to projections in Section 7 in order to make it 
apparent that projections should be looked at when reviewing setbacks. 
 
Commissioner Sylvia asked if the proposed setbacks are significantly different than those in the current 
Code.  In reading the information in the packet, he felt some significant changes were made.  Ms. 
Corliss said that they did not suggest changes to the base setbacks in the current Code, except where 
there were conflicts in the current Code. To save paper and time for the meeting, only the additions 
and deletions are represented in the meeting packet, not the large chunks of unchanged wording.  
There were however, some significant changes in the setbacks for accessory structures; not only 
because there were some conflicts in the current Code, but also some concerns that arose when 
discussing the subject with staff.   
 
Commissioner Sylvia asked about the new language regarding the garage placement.  Ms. Corliss said 
this is one of those things the Planning Commission and City Council may want to consider.  Many 
jurisdictions do not like the garage to be the dominant feature on the front of the house.  The 
suggestion being offered, after input, is that the garage be at least flush with the house.  Commissioner 
Kleinschmidt asked where this input came from.   Ms. Corliss said that she was going off notes from 
the previous project coordinator.  Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager said that some of these 

Item #9a

Page 35 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

suggestions came from meetings with stakeholders within the community that were held early on in 
the project.   
 
Mayor Otte asked if they could filter questions and suggestions back to her through Assistant to the 
City Manager Hogue.  Ms. Corliss said that would be acceptable.  Commissioner Greg Savage asked if 
they could have a MS Word document to track changes.  Ms. Corliss asked if there is a desire for 
another work session.  Gary Fish, Transportation Planner with DLCD, said he had included a 
contingency to account for additional work sessions that may be needed to complete the Development 
Code update.   
 
There was a consensus of the Council and Planning Commission to schedule another work session to 
allow time to further review the changes and present questions.   

 
5. ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor Otte adjourned the meeting at 7:17 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  ____________________ 

     Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager  

 

 

Attested by:   ____________________ 

     Andrew Otte, Mayor 

Item #9a

Page 36 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

City of Mt. Angel 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

                           

CITY COUNCIL                          September 6, 2016        7:00 PM                                  
 

The Mt. Angel City Council met in a regular session in the Community Meeting Room, 290 E. Charles 

Street, Mt. Angel, Oregon.  

1. CALL TO ORDER: The regular session of the City Council was called to order at 7:25 p.m. by 
Mayor Otte. 

 
2. FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Otte led the salute to the flag.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: 

 
COUNCIL    STAFF  
Andrew Otte, Mayor      Mike Healy, Interim City Manager/Police Chief 
Kelly Grassman, Council President  Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager 
Darren Beyer, Councilor                         Dan Bernt, Public Works Superintendent 
Ray Eder, Councilor    Carrie Alexandria Caster, Library Director 
Don Fleck, Councilor     
Pete Wall, Councilor                

      Karl Bischoff, Councilor 
 

 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:    

Matthew Cofer from Republic Services appeared before the Council.  Councilor Bischoff recused himself 
from the discussion and any vote as he is employed by Republic Services.  Mr. Cofer explained that 
Marion County increased the disposal rate by 30%.  Marion County is a flow controlled County meaning 
all waste generated in the County is required to be disposed of within the County.  He explained the 
County Commissioners’ reasoning for deciding to increase the disposal rate.  There was a 2 million dollar 
shortfall in the departmental budget as operational costs increased and other revenue generating activities 
associated with solid waste disposal became significantly less lucrative than in the past and could no longer 
supplement the budget, all of which led to a decision to implement a significant rate increase.  Mr. Cofer 
respectfully requested that the Council consider an 11.8% disposal rate increase, which is a pass through 
expense to Republic Services customers, to compensate for the increase.  Councilor Grassman asked him 
to explain the cost increases provided in the packet.  Mr. Cofer explained what the increases meant to 
various types of customers.  Councilor Eder asked what might happen if the Council did not approve a 
resolution to allow such an increase.  Mr. Cofer said he would inform Republic Services of Mt. Angel’s 
decision and approach the Council yet again about the proposed increase.  Councilor Wall pointed out that 
a resolution would need to be prepared before the Council could take action.  The Council instructed staff 
to prepare a resolution for the rate increase effective October 1, 2016 to be presented at the October 
Council meeting. 

Item #9b

Page 37 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

Mayor Otte asked where the disposal boxes would be for the annual clean up.  Mr. Cofer said they will be 
placing the boxes up at the Legion Hall for the community. 
 

5.   APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS:   

None 

 

6.   REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE:   

A letter was received from Father Bernard Youth Center thanking the Council for their support and the 

City’s assistance with the sidewalk project at the Youth Center Retreat House.   

 

7.   REVIEW WRITTEN STAFF REPORTS: 

Councilor Grassman stated she was glad that the soccer field at Ebner Park is being used.  Mayor Otte said 
that the middle school principal had shared with him that the middle school soccer team did not have a 
location for the team to play.  Mayor Otte suggested they contact City Hall to see if the field at Ebner Park 
was available.  He is glad that the team would be able to use the field and pleased with how promptly staff 
handled the request.  
 
Councilor Fleck asked about the new brewery at the Abbey.  He wanted to know if it would significantly 
impact the wastewater treatment plant.  Public Works Superintendent Bernt said that they are waiting for 
the specifications on the new brewery, but that he did not expect a significant impact on the wastewater 
treatment plant.  He explained that pretreatment will take place similar to what Pepsi does before it enters 
the system and that it appears the brewery intends discard the majority of the product waste by hauling it 
away.  
 
Councilor Beyer asked Public Works Superintendent Bernt to give him a refresher on the smoke testing.  
He was concerned that extensive repairs would need to be made and wondered if there will be a need to 
budget for a significant repair project.  Public Works Superintendent Bernt explained that there was smoke 
that leaked through during the tests and they are awaiting the final report. The Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) provides a window of time to address any significant problems within the 
system from the time the report is receive to following calendar year, allowing for an additional year to 
remedy system deficiencies.  Public Works Superintendent Bernt suggested that the infiltration and inflow 
(I & I) funds could be used to address the lines found to be inadequate.  This is only for the public portion 
of the system and there is not a lot that can be done for private lines at this time.  The City is making an 
honest effort to address the deficient lines through contacting private property owners about issues. 
Additional measures the City has taken such as increasing the I & I budget are considered by DEQ to be 
an adequate response to amend deficiencies in the wastewater system. 
 
Councilor Grassman thanked Public Works for cleaning up the nature play area at Ebner Park.  It looks 
nice and citizens have been mentioning to her that they appreciated the effort.  
 

8.   REVIEW ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:  

No comments on Accounts Payable 

 

 

Item #9b

Page 38 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

9.   CONSENT AGENDA:  

a. Approve City Council Regular Meeting Minutes for August 1, 2016 
b. Approve City Council Special Meeting Minutes for August 9, 2016 

 
  Councilor Beyer moved to approve the consent agenda.  Councilor Wall seconded. 

 
Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  AYE     Wall:            AYE 
Fleck:  AYE 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a.  Street Light and Stormwater Fees for Out-of-city Utility Customers 
Assistant to the City Manager Hogue provided and explained the information that was requested in the 
special meeting, addressing a letter the Mayor received from a concerned citizen about the addition of the 
streetlight and stormwater fees on their utility bill.  The letter asked the Council to consider whether these 
charges are appropriate, as their property lies outside of City limits and there is a City easement and 
stormline crossing their property.  Some discussion took place about the mutual benefit of streetlights to 
all.  Councilor Grassman asked if they could consider granting an exemption for this one customer.  
Interim City Manager Healy asked the Council if they would like him to confer with the City Attorney and 
see if there would be any reason the Council could not or should not grant an exemption for the 
stormwater fee to customers on a case by case basis. 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS: 

a. Street light request from Public Works 
Public Works Superintendent Bernt presented a request from a citizen to place an additional streetlight on 
S. Oak Street.  He did an assessment of the placement of the streetlights on S. Oak and of those in the 
direct vicinity and concluded the spacing on S. Oak is no less than on any of the other streets.  Public 
Works Superintendent Bernt said that the citizen has frequently approached Public Works with this 
request, which is why he has now brought it to the Council.  After reviewing the diagram and some 
discussion, the Council decided by consensus not to place an additional streetlight at that location and 
retain the current spacing of streetlights.     

 
b. Discussion of Future Agenda Items 

The Council reviewed future agenda items with Interim City Manager Healy.   Mayor Otte asked to 
schedule the repeal of the marijuana city tax ordinance for the October Council meeting. 
 
Mayor Otte asked for input on another joint work session with the Planning Commission to update the 
Development Code. There was consensus upon holding a joint workshop with the Planning Commission 
separate from a regularly scheduled Council meeting.  They asked that a workshop be scheduled on 
September 27, 2016 and that Angelo Planning Group and the Planning Commission be invited to attend.  
  
 
 

Item #9b

Page 39 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  
Interim City Manager Healy stated that City staff will send out final notices to those who have not 
provided the City with updated water account applications.  City Staff will be offering customers assistance 
in filling out the application forms at the front desk.  City Hall Day is being held in Lebanon this year and 
the Council is invited to attend the event.  Interim City Manager Healy reported that the City Hall staff 
have scheduled a training on a new Caselle module.   

 
12. COUNCILOR/COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
Councilor Grassman said that the dance troupe rehearsal for Oktoberfest will be held in front of the 
gazebo.  She invited the Council and citizens to come watch.  
 
Mayor Otte stated that Council President Grassman will be speaking at the Opening Ceremonies for 
Oktoberfest. 
 
Councilor Bischoff said that he received a citizen complain about squatters in vacant homes and he wanted 
to know if and how the City might address it.  Interim City Manager Healy said that he has attempted to 
address the squatter issue since he began working for the City.  Staff has contacted the mortgage 
companies about foreclosing on the property, but the companies are refusing to touch such situations 
because of new laws passed during the recession regarding mortgages and arduous steps now involved in 
completing a foreclosure.  Several strategies were discussed. Mayor Otte mentioned that he spoke to the 
same complainant and they are concerned about tires being collected and stored on the property.  Interim 
City Manager Healy said the difficulty arises in there not being a property owner to hold responsible, but 
he would investigate options.  Councilor Grassman asked if the City could buy the properties in order to 
resolve the situation.  Interim City Manager said that option has never been proposed, he would check into 
the ability of the City to take that action and report back to the Council after exploring the option further. 
 
Councilor Eder said that he will be unable to participate in the interview of another City Manager 
candidate tomorrow night.  Interim City Manager Healy shared the updated interview schedule for the 
following day. 
 
14. MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Mayor Otte brought back information on having an advisory student member of the Council.   The Mayor 
visited with the School District Superintendent who was very supportive of the idea.  The Mayor 
recommended having the high school principal pick the student this year and then prepare a formal 
application process for the spring.  Councilor Wall reported that the School District has started a new 
strategic planning process, he is a non-educator public member of the team.  He believes that may provide 
a way for the student to participate.  Councilor Bischoff asked if a resolution was necessary to make this 
official.  
 

Councilor Grassman made a motion to bring a student member onto the City Council in an 
advisory role to serve during the school year and award a $500 scholarship to the student member 
for their service.  Councilor Eder seconded. 

 
Beyer:  AYE     Otte:         AYE 
Bischoff: AYE     Grassman:       AYE 
Eder:  AYE     Wall:            AYE 
Fleck:  AYE 

Item #9b

Page 40 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 

15. ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor Otte adjourned the meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by:  ____________________ 

     Justin Hogue, Assistant to the City Manager  

 

 

 

Attested by:   ____________________ 

     Andrew Otte, Mayor 

Item #9b

Page 41 of 65



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    October 3, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion    Information   

Date Prepared:  September 12, 2016 Department:  Administration  

SUBJECT:  Republic Services Rate Increase 
Proposal 

Contact Person for this Item:  Justin Hogue, 
Assistant to the City Manager, jhogue@ci-mt-
angel.or.us, 503-845-9291 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve a proposed 11.8% rate increase for disposal of municipal solid 
waste per the City’s franchise with Republic Services. 
 
BACKGROUND:  At the September 6, 2016 City Council meeting, Matthew Cofer, Republic Services 
Operations Manager, presented the Council with a proposal to increase rates in order to compensate for 
Marion County raising its fees for disposal of municipal solid waste. One of the largest pass through expenses 
to the customer by Republic Services is disposal, which will experience an 11.8% increase.  
 
Presently, Marion County is experiencing a decline in revenue and a rise in expenditures. In prior years, 
revenue derived from brokering energy generated from the burner and an ash mining operation were able to 
compensate for much of the cost. However, changes in the way that electrical markets are valued and a sharp 
decline in metal prices over the past two years has led to Marion County’s Environmental Services finding 
themselves in a $2 million dollar shortfall.  
 
The solid waste portion of Marion County’s environmental Services division is primarily funded by 
disposal fees. As a result, Marion County made the determination to raise rates, namely the tipping fee, in 
order to deal with the adverse economic conditions leading to the County’s financial situation. This is the 
first tipping fee increase since 1992. 
 
Section 7 of the franchise agreement identifies the following criteria for the Council to consider when 
contemplating a rate increase: 

(a) Cost of performing the service provided by the franchisee; 
 

(b) Anticipated increases in the cost of providing the services 
 

(c) Need for equipment replacement and the need for additional equipment to meet service needs; 
compliance with federal, state and local law, ordinance and regulations; or technological change; 
 

(d) Local wage scales, cost of management and facilities, and disposal and processing fees and charges; 

Item #10a

Page 42 of 65



    

(e) Investment of the franchisee and the value of its business and the necessity that the franchisee shall 
have a reasonable operating margin and rate of return on revenue; 
 

(f) Rates in other cities for similar service; and 
 

(g) Any increase or decrease in the franchise fee charged by the City. 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: “I move to approve: A RESOLUTION GRANTING A RATE 
INCREASE OF 11.8% TO REPUBLIC SERVICES OF MARION COUNTY, OREGON (FORMERLY 
ALLIED WASTE OF MARION COUNTY, OREGON) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FRANCHISE 
APPROVED AS ORDINANCE 704.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS A: Resolution 

Item #10a

Page 43 of 65



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 
RESOLUTION NO. 1463 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING A RATE INCREASE OF 11.8% TO REPUBLIC SERVICES OF 
MARION COUNTY, OREGON (FORMERLY ALLIED WASTE OF MARION COUNTY, 
OREGON) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FRANCHISE APPROVED AS ORDINANCE 704. 
 
WHEREAS, on December 6, 2005, the Mt. Angel City Council adopted Ordinance No. 704 renewing 
the franchise of Allied Waste Services of Marion County, Oregon to continue providing all types of 
solid waste collection, resource recovery, and disposal of solid waste; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 7 of said ordinance provides that rates for the Franchisee may be changed by the 
passage of a Council Resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Franchisee, now recognized by the City of Mt. Angel as Republic Services of Marion 
County, Oregon per Resolution 1415 adopted by the Mt. Angel City Council October 7, 2013, applied to 
the City for an increase in rates in September of 2016, stating the organization is unable to cover 
increased cost of disposal; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marion County has increased the disposal rates for municipal solid waste due to declining 
revenues and increased expenses as a result of a recent change in the way electrical markets are valued 
and a decline in metal prices; and 
 
WHEREAS, Marion County is a flow controlled County, requiring all solid waste produced in Marion 
County be disposed of within said County; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mt. Angel that:  
 
SECTION 1. The request of Republic Services of Marion County, Oregon for a rate increase to defray 
the increased cost of disposal is approved at 11.8%, and the City adopts the attached rate schedules 
labeled as Exhibit “A”, being incorporated by reference in this resolution.  The rates approved shall be 
maximum rates, effective October 1, 2016. 
 
SECTION 2. This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage by Council. 
 
Passed by the City Council this 3rd day of October, 2016, by the following vote:     
 

AYES:       NAYS:   
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 3rd day of October, 2016. 
 
 
             
     Andrew Otte, Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:           
     Mike Healy, Interim City Manager 

Item #10a Attachment A

Page 44 of 65



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    October 3, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion    Information   

Date Prepared:  September 13, 2016 Department:  Administration  

SUBJECT:  Repealing Ord. No. 741 and 
Chapter 116 of the Mt. Angel Municipal Code 
Concerning a City Tax on Marijuana Sales. 

Contact Person for this Item:  Justin Hogue, 
Assistant to the City Manager, jhogue@ci-mt-
angel.or.us, 503-845-9291 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Conduct a first and second reading and consider an ordinance repealing 
Ordinance 741 establishing a tax on the sale of medical and recreational use of marijuana and marijuana-
infused products in the city of Mt. Angel and repealing Chapter 116 of the Mt. Angel Municipal Code. 
 
BACKGROUND:  During the 2013 special legislative session, the Oregon Legislature passed HB 
3460, which allowed for the establishment and registration of medical marijuana dispensaries in Oregon.  
HB 3460 took effect in March, 2014 and the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) began accepting 
applications to register medical marijuana facilities.  In addition, a measure (Ballot Measure 91) ending 
Oregon’s prohibition on recreational marijuana was expected to be included on 2014 general election 
ballot and be approved by Oregon voters.  
 
As the many aspects of Ballot Measure 91 came to light, it remained uncertain whether Section 42 
(taxation preemption) and Section 58 (repeal of inconsistent local ordinances) would make any tax or 
fee on marijuana unlawful. If Measure 91 was approved as predicted, it was anticipated that the state of 
Oregon would move to collect a tax on marijuana sales as it does alcohol and cigarette taxes, and 
preempt the ability of local governments to collect a tax locally.  
 
It was widely speculated that in the state’s preemption, the state would argue to the courts that local 
ordinances ought to be overruled.  Cities would likely argue their ordinances ought to be grandfathered 
since they were enacted before the measure took effect, but certainly there would be no guarantee absent 
adjudication.   
 
With the prospect that the Legislature could later modify the language to allow for taxes passed prior to 
the passage of Measure 91 or repeal the prohibition on the local taxation of marijuana entirely, many 
cities moved ahead with local ordinances to tax marijuana sales in hopes of reserving such ability.  
Similarly, Ordinance No. 741, was adopted by the Mt. Angel City Council November 3, 2014 to reserve 

Item #11a

Page 45 of 65



    

the City's right to tax marijuana sales at the point in time that marijuana was allowed to be sold in 
Oregon.  
 
Following the passage of Measure 91, HB 4014 was passed during the 2016 legislative session and 
became effective on March 3, 2016. HB 4014 allowed cities and counties to enter into an 
intergovernmental agreement with the state to have the Oregon Department of Revenue collect local 
marijuana taxes imposed under ORS 475B.345 and limit cities and counties to a 3 percent retail 
marijuana excise tax, provided that the tax is approved by the voters of the city or county.  
 
Currently, the City has authorized a 10% tax on medical and recreational marijuana sales within the 
City, which is no longer enforceable as ORS 475B.345 prohibits cities from imposing all other taxes and 
fees on the production, processing, or sale of marijuana. The proposed ordinance (Attachment A) repeals 
the existing 10% tax. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to conduct a first and second reading to approve: AN ORDINANCE REPEALING 
ORDINANCE 741 ESTABLISHING A TAX ON THE SALE OF MARIJUANA AND MARIJUANA-
INFUSED PRODUCTS IN THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL AND REPEALING CHAPTER 116 OF THE 
MT. ANGEL MUNCIPAL CODE.”  
 
ATTACHMENTS A: Ordinance 

Item #11a

Page 46 of 65



Ordinance No. 753  Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 753 
 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE 741 ESTABLISHING A TAX ON THE 
SALE OF MARIJUANA AND MARIJUANA-INFUSED PRODUCTS IN THE CITY OF 
MT. ANGEL AND REPEALING CHAPTER 116 OF THE MT. ANGEL MUNCIPAL 
CODE  
 
WHEREAS, On November 3, 2014 the Mt. Angel City Council adopted Ordinance No. 741 
establishing a tax upon the retail sale of marijuana and marijuana-infused products; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 741 was adopted to reserve the city's right to tax recreational 
marijuana at the point in time that recreational marijuana was allowed to be sold in Oregon; and 
 
WHEREAS, following the City’s adoption of Ordinance No. 741, the Oregon legislature 
adopted ORS 475B.345, which allows cities in Oregon to impose a 3% tax on retail recreational 
marijuana sales, if that 3% tax is approved by the voters of the City at a general election; and 
 
WHEREAS, ORS 475B.345 prohibits cities from imposing all other taxes and fees on the 
production, processing, or sale of marijuana; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 741 and Mt. Angel Municipal Code Chapter 116 are now 
preempted by state law and are unenforceable; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Ordinance No. 741 is hereby repealed in its entirety and Chapter 116 of the Mt. 
Angel Municipal Code is hereby removed in its entirety from the Mt. Angel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after second reading and final passage.  
 
1st Reading: Conducted by the City Council this 3rd day of October, 2016. 

2nd Reading: Conducted and approved by the City Council this 3rd day of October, 2016, by the 
following vote:  

AYES:      NAYS:  
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 3rd day of October, 2016. 
 

     _____________________________________  
          Andrew Otte, Mayor      

ATTESTED BY:   _______________________________________ 

     Mike Healy, Interim City Manager 

Filed in the office of the City Recorder this 3rd day of October, 2016. 

Item #11a Attachment A

Page 47 of 65



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    October 3, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion  Information   

Date Prepared:  September 26, 2016 Dept.:  Administration 

SUBJECT:  Business License Ordinance 

Contact Person(s) for this Item:  Justin Hogue, 
Assistant to the City Manager, jhogue@ci.mt-
angel.or.us, (503) 845-9291 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a first and second reading to approve an ordinance establishing a business 
license for all business located inside the corporate city limits of Mt. Angel.   
 
BACKGROUND:  On June 6, 2016, the City Council adopted a resolution updating the fee schedule. This 
update included a $50 fee for business licenses. In conjunction, the proposed ordinance establishes the rules and 
regulations for administering the business license program (Attachment A). The object of the business license is 
to learn who is doing business in Mt. Angel, what the nature of the business is, to ensure that business is 
conducted in a safe environment in order to protect workers and patrons and assist first responders in 
responding appropriately, and to certify compliance with all City ordinances and resolutions. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  
“I move to conduct a first and second reading to approve: AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LICENSES 
UPON TRADES, SHOPS, OCCUPATIONS, PROFESSIONS, BUSINESSES, AND CALLINGS FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF REVENUE AND REGULATION; PROVIDING FOR THE METHOD OF ISSUING 
LICENSES; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF.” 
 
Attachment A: Ordinance 
 

Item #11b

Page 48 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 1 of 7 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 754 
 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LICENSES UPON TRADES, SHOPS, 
OCCUPATIONS, PROFESSIONS, BUSINESSES, AND CALLINGS FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF REVENUE AND REGULATION; PROVIDING FOR THE METHOD OF 
ISSUING LICENSES; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds that it is in the public interest and necessary for the 
preservation of the public health, safety and welfare, to assist businesses with police and fire 
protection, and assure compliance with City ordinances and resolutions, to require all businesses 
within the corporate limits of the city of Mt. Angel to license such businesses with the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds it necessary to recover expenses for the administration of 
licensing such businesses with the City;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF MT. ANGEL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Purpose. 
 
This ordinance is enacted for the purposes of providing for the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of Mt. Angel by requiring all businesses within the corporate limits of the City of Mt. 
Angel to license such businesses with the City and to raise revenue to pay for the expense involved 
in issuing the business license. The license fee hereinafter imposed shall be in addition to all general 
ad valorem taxes now or hereafter levied pursuant to law, and shall be in addition to any and all other 
license or franchise fees otherwise imposed by the City of Mt. Angel under existing ordinances and 
resolutions. 
 
SECTION 2. Definitions.  
 
For the purposes of this Ordinance, the words set out in this section have the following 
meanings: 

 
“City” The City of Mt. Angel, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon. 
  
“Business” An individual, shop, firm, company, corporation, association or partnership 
conducting any trade, profession, occupation or pursuit for gain, including. This 
definition includes but is not limited to non-profit organizations which sell food or liquor, 
transient merchants, and home occupations. 

 
“Employee” Any person working for, within or under the auspices of a business, other 
than a certified independent contractor or leased employee, including common law and 
statutory wage-earning, commission and salaried employees; executive and common 
employees; agents; sales representatives; sole proprietors; partners; corporate officers and 
any and all persons associated directly with the business, whether full or part-time. 

 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 49 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 2 of 7 
 

“Exclusively Licensed Businesses” Businesses exclusively licensed by the state of 
Oregon, or the activities of which are exclusively subject to regulations by the United 
States as being solely interstate in character. 
 
“License” or “Business License” The document issued by the city granting the privilege 
to carry on a particular business or pursue a certain occupation within the city. 
 
“Non-Profit” Any business or organization which holds a certificate of exemption from 
taxes from the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
“Place of Business” A business location inside the city of Mt. Angel, which meets all 
City ordinances, within a permanent structure or building which rest on a permanent 
foundation and which substantially complies with the Uniform Building Code or at a 
fixed location on public or private property not within a permanent structure.  

 
“Transfer” To transfer the name or ownership of a business, but does not include a 
change in business location. 

 
SECTION 3. License Required. 
 
There are hereby imposed upon the businesses, trades, shops, professions, callings and 
occupations specified in this ordinance, a business license fee in the amount prescribed by 
resolution, and it shall be unlawful for any person to conduct, transact or carry on any such 
business in the city without first having obtained the license therefore for the current calendar 
year as herein provided and without first complying with any and all application provisions of 
this ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Exceptions.  
 
The following activities are exempt from the provisions of this ordinance:  
 

(A) Wholesale deliveries to a licensed business from operations based outside the limits 
of the city.  
 
(B) Rental of dwellings for either short or long term occupancy.  

 
(C) Casual labor activities performed by minors or others including, but not limited to, 
lawn mowing and babysitting services. Childcare facilities are not exempt. 

 
(D) Any activity conducted solely for charitable, religious, community, or public purpose 
including fairs, festivals, fundraisers, and public entertainment events by nonprofit 
organizations. A non-profit organization which sells food or liquor on an ongoing basis is 
not exempt.  

 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 50 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 3 of 7 
 

(E) Producers of farm products raised in Mt. Angel and produced or cultivated 
exclusively by said producers or their immediate families, shall not be subject to license 
fees prescribed herein that may apply to the selling of such products if the farm products 
are sold by themselves or their immediate families exclusively. 
 
(F) Exclusively Licensed Businesses such as those businesses exempt from the payment 
of municipal license fees pursuant to Oregon or federal law; 

 
(G) Any person involved in the home delivery of newspapers, groceries, or other goods 
purchased outside the city; 
 
(H) Garage Sales entailing the periodic sale of personal property by an individual or 
group of individuals at their own personal residence. 
 
(I) Any person, contractor, consultant, firm, company or corporation who do not normally 
conduct business from or in, or otherwise occupy, a particular site, location or structure 
within the city limits. 
 
(J) Governmental bodies and their administrative agencies which are engaged in 
governmental functions. 

(K) Other businesses or business related activities that, due to their minimal activities, 
may be declared exempt by the City Manager/Recorder. 

SECTION 5. License Application.  

(A) All business licenses required under this ordinance or any other ordinance shall be issued by 
the City Manager/Recorder. Application for all licenses shall be made to the City on forms 
prescribed by the city. The application for any permit shall contain the following information: 
 

(1)  The description of the business carried on within the city. 
 

(2)  The name of the applicant, with a statement of all persons having an interest in the 
business, either as proprietors or owners of the business. 
 
(3)  The applicant shall include on the application whether he/she has ever been convicted 
of a felony, or whether he/she has ever been convicted of a misdemeanor involving a 
violation of any municipal ordinance regulating taxing any business, or involving moral 
turpitude. A background release form for the business owner(s) must be included. 
 
(4)  The location at which the business is conducted. 
 
(5)  The date of application. 

 
(6)  The amount of money tendered with the application. 
 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 51 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 4 of 7 
 

(7)  Proof of the applicant's possession of any permits, certificates, or registrations that 
are required by city, county, state or federal laws to conduct the type of business listed on 
the application. 
 
(8)  Site plan of the area where the structure will be located. Site plan shall clearly show 
any parking spaces, which may be impacted, any necessary driving lanes, utility pole 
locations, nearby buildings, and sidewalks. 
 
(9)  Proof of compliance with all applicable building codes. 

 
(10)    If food or beverages is to be sold, then the applicant shall provide a copy of proof 
of the applicable food handler's license from Marion County. 

 
(11)    Any other information necessary to enable the city to review the application and to 
determine the appropriate fee as established by resolution of the Council. 
 
(12)    If on private property, a signed letter of authorization from the property owner, or 
copy of lease agreement. 

 
(13)    Consistent with the underlying zone designation. 

  
(B) The City Manager/Recorder shall refer each application to the appropriate departments for 
review. Review of the application shall be based on consideration of all available evidence as to 
whether the business will meet the requirements of the city charter and ordinances. This includes 
a criminal background check of the owner(s). The permit may not be granted if: 
 

(1)  The activity to be permitted would not comply with city ordinances or state laws. 
 

(2)  The permitted activity would endanger property or the public's health or safety. 
 
(3)  The applicant's violation of law or ordinance represents a reasonable doubt about the 
applicant's ability to perform the permitted activity without endangering property or the 
public's health or safety. 
 
(4)  The applicant fails to supply the information required, or submits misleading or false 
information, or submitted misleading or false information on a previous application. 

 
 (C) Upon a favorable recommendation from each department, the City Manager/Recorder shall 
issue the permit. If it is determined that the application is denied, the City Manager/Recorder 
shall notify the applicant of the denial and the reasons for denial. 
 
(E) Approved business licenses shall remain on file with the Mt. Angel City Recorder and a copy 
shall be provided to the Mt. Angel Fire District. 
 
SECTION 6. Multiple Businesses at Same Location – Branch Offices – Professional Offices. 
 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 52 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 5 of 7 
 

(A) If more than one business takes place at the same location and is operated under the same 
ownership, but is operated under more than one business name, one application may be filed, 
provided each business is clearly identified and all relevant information is included in the unified 
application. 
 
(B) Each branch establishment of a business or location of a business conducted by any person 
shall, for the purposes hereof, be treated as a separate business subject to the registration 
provided for in this ordinance. Warehouses used incidentally with a duly registered business 
shall not be deemed to be a separate place of business or branch establishment. 

 
SECTION 7. Transfer of License.  

(A) The license shall be the property of the applicant, and may not be assigned or transferred. 

(B) Business licenses shall be void if the name of the business changes, the location of the 
business changes, ownership changes or the business goes out of business. 
 
SECTION 8. False Information. 
It is unlawful for any person to supply false information in connection with any application 
required by this ordinance with intent to obtain a permit or license required in this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 9. Revocation of License. 
 
A business license may be revoked on any one or more of the following grounds: 
 

(A) Approval of the business license was obtained by fraud or misrepresentation; 
 
(B) The use for which approval was granted has ceased to exist; 
 
(C) The use does not meet the conditions specifically established for it at the time of 
approval of the application; 
 
(D) The business is in violation of any other applicable statute, ordinance or regulation. 
 

SECTION 10. Denial of License Application.  

The denial of any application shall be made in writing, shall specify the reasons for the denial 
and shall be signed by the City Manager/Recorder. The application may be denied if it the 
structure in which the business is located is not in compliance with state, county or city 
ordinances or fire codes, or if the application is not complete.  
 
SECTION 11. Appeal. 

 (A) Any person whose application for a permit has been denied, or whose permit has been 
denied renewal, has been suspended or has been revoked, may, within 30 days after the notice of 
denial, suspension, or revocation is mailed, appeal in writing to the City Council. The appeal 
shall state: 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 53 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 6 of 7 
 

(1) The name and address of the appellant 
 
(2) The nature of the determination being appealed. 
 
(3) The reason the determination is incorrect. 
 
(4) What the correct determination of the appeal should be. 

 (B) An appellant who fails to file a statement within the time permitted waives all objections, 
and relinquishes all rights to appeal. If a notice of revocation is appealed, the revocation does not 
take effect until final determination of the appeal. At the hearing, the appellant may present 
testimony and oral argument. The decision of the Council is final. 

SECTION 12. Expiration and Renewal. 
 
(A) The license year shall commence January 1 in each year and shall terminate at midnight, 
December 31, of the same year; provided, however, that all businesses required to pay a license 
fee in the amounts hereinafter prescribed shall apply for a license under the terms of this 
ordinance not later than February 1 of the year for which the license is needed, and failure so to 
do shall be a violation of this ordinance and subject to the penalty provisions herein. 
 
(B) The license fee set by resolution shall be due and payable on January 1 of each year for the 
calendar year commencing with such date and shall be delinquent on and after the following 
February 1. Licenses for persons who first begin engaging in a business after January 1 in any 
year shall be due and payable prior to such person engaging in business. All license fees shall be 
delinquent if not paid within 10 days after due. 
 
SECTION 13. Posting of License. 
 
The license or permit shall be posted in a conspicuous place upon the business premises, 
available for inspection by the public, employees and prospective employees of the business. 
 
SECTION 14. Deposit of License Fees in General Fund. 
 
All license fees and monies collected under and by virtue of this ordinance shall be deposited and 
placed in the general fund of the City, and the same shall be disbursed only upon order of the 
City Council. 
 
SECTION 15. Violations and Penalties.  

(A) Any business which shall be conducted in the city without having first obtained the license 
as required by this ordinance shall be subject to a fine of not to exceed $750.00 and, in addition, 
the City may, by appropriate legal proceeding, enjoin the continued operation of the business.  

(B) Each day that any person conducts any business in violation of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed a separate offense. 

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 54 of 65



Ordinance No. 754  Page 7 of 7 
 

 
(C) The conviction of a person for violation of any provision of this ordinance may not serve to 
relieve the person from paying the fee or penalty for which the person is liable. The payment of 
any fee may not bar or prevent legal prosecution of a complaint for the violation of any provision 
of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 16. Disclaimers. 

(A) The levy or collection of a license fee shall not be construed to be a license or permit to 
engage in any business which is unlawful, illegal or prohibited by the laws of the State of 
Oregon, the County of Marion or ordinances or resolutions of the City. 

(B) Nothing herein contained shall be taken or construed as vesting any right in any license as a 
contract obligation on the part of the City. Business license fees, as set by City Council 
resolution, may be increased or decreased at any time by the City Council. No person having 
paid the fee required, and having made application for a business license, shall be entitled to any 
refund. 

SECTION 17. Severability.  

If any portion of this ordinance shall be held to be invalid for any reason, the same shall be 
stricken from the ordinance and the remainder shall be regarded as having been adopted by the 
Council, and shall remain enforceable. 
 
SECTION 18.  This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after the final reading. 
 
1st Reading: Conducted and approved by the City Council this 3rd day of October, 2016. 
 

2nd Reading: Conducted and approved by the City Council this 3rd day of October, 2016, by the 
following vote:   
 

AYES:                             NAYS:    
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR this 3rd day of October, 2016. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________ 
     Andrew Otte, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:   __________________________________________ 
     Michael D. Healy, Interim City Manager 
 
 
Filed in the office of the City Recorder this 3rd day of October, 2016.  

Item #11b Attachment A

Page 55 of 65



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:   October 3, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution    Motion  Work Session   

Date Prepared: September 14, 2016 Dept.:  Administration 

SUBJECT:  Approval of City Manager 
Employment Contract 

Contact Person for this Item:  Mike Healy, 
Interim City Manager, mhealy@ci.mt-
angel.or.us, 503-845-9294 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve the City Manager contract with the preferred candidate after 
Council discussion in executive session on October 3, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND: Mayor Otte entered into negotiations with the Council’s preferred candidate for the 
position of City Manager.  A draft agreement will be presented to the City Council for discussion in 
executive session prior to the regular Council meeting on October 3rd.  If the Council decides to move 
the draft agreement forward to be presented in the regular meeting for final approval, staff recommends 
the employment contract with the preferred candidate be approved for signing by the Mayor. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: “I move to approve the employment agreement with______________ 
(insert name of City Council’s preferred candidate) and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement on 
behalf of the City.” 

 
 
 

Item #11c

Page 56 of 65



    

CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    October 3, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion    Information   

Date Prepared:  September 28, 2016 Department:  Administration  

SUBJECT:  Addendum to Intergovernmental 
Agreement for Municipal Judge 
 

Contact Person for this Item:  Justin Hogue, 
Assistant to the City Manager, jhogue@ci-mt-
angel.or.us, 503-845-9291 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Approve an addendum to the intergovernmental agreement (IGA) for 
Municipal Judge. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The city of Gervais is seeking a Municipal Court Judge. After holding discussions 
with Judge Lori Coukoulis, the city of Gervais desires to amend the IGA for Municipal Judge between 
the cities of Hubbard, Aurora, Silverton, and Mt. Angel to include the City of Gervais. The city of 
Gervais has submitted an IGA addendum (Attachment B) to the cities represented in the current IGA.   
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
“I move to approve an addendum as presented by the city of Gervais to the intergovernmental 
agreement for Municipal Judge.”  
 
ATTACHMENT A: Current IGA 
ATTACHMENT B: Addendum to IGA 

Item #11d

Page 57 of 65



Item #11d Attachment A 

Page 58 of 65



Item #11d Attachment A 

Page 59 of 65



Item #11d Attachment A 

Page 60 of 65



Item #11d Attachment A 

Page 61 of 65



ADDENDUM TO 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL JUDGE 

 
 

This is an addendum to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for Municipal Judge that was 
entered into, by and between the City of Hubbard, the City of Aurora, the City of Silverton, and 
the City of Mt. Angel, all of which are municipal corporations (the “Parties” or “Cities”). 
 
The purpose of this addendum is to amend only certain sections of the original IGA to include 
the City of Gervais. 
 
In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to 
the amendments as set forth below. 
 

WITNESSED 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hubbard, Aurora, Silverton, Mt. Angel and Gervais have 
appointed Lori Coukoulis as either Municipal Judge or Municipal Judge Pro-tem; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained, herein the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Lori Coukoulis shall perform the duties of either Municipal Judge or Municipal Court 
Judge Pro-Tem as an independent contractor for the cities of Hubbard, Aurora, 
Silverton, Mt. Angel and Gervais as long as each individual city desires her to do so.  
Any city may remove Lori Coukoulis from her position without affecting her position 
with the other cities or the remainder of this agreement. 

 
The Agreement as hereby amended shall take effect when it is signed by two parties and shall 
remain in effect as long as at least two parties that have signed the Agreement retain Lori 
Coukoulis as Municipal Court Judge or Municipal Court Judge Pro-Tem.  Except as expressly 
modified by this amendment, the terms, conditions, covenants and performances of the 
Agreement shall remain unchanged and are hereby ratified and confirmed as being in full force 
and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Cities have caused this amendment to the Intergovernmental 
Agreement for Municipal Judge be signed and executed.  Signed by the City of Gervais this 6th 
day of October, 2016. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

Item #11d Attachment B

Page 62 of 65



_______________________________  _____________________________ 
City of Hubbard     City of Mt. Angel 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
City of Aurora      City of Silverton 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
 
 
_______________________________   
City of Gervais 
 
_______________________________   
Title 
 
 
 
 

Item #11d Attachment B

Page 63 of 65



CITY OF MT. ANGEL 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 

                              DATE ACTION REQUESTED:    October 3, 2016 
Ordinance   Resolution   Motion  Information   

Date Prepared:  September 28, 2016 Dept.:  Administration 

SUBJECT:  Union Healthcare Negotiations 
Contact Person(s) for this Item:  Mike Healy, 
Interim City Manager, mhealy@ci.mt-angel.or.us, 
(503) 845-9294 

 
RECOMMENDATION: There is no recommended action at this time. It is anticipated that additional 
information will become available for the October 3, 2016 City Council meeting. Pending the progression of 
negotiations and additional information, a recommended motion will be provided. 
 

Item #11e

Page 64 of 65



Mt. Angel City Council  
Agenda Calendar 

9/14/16 
 

    
 

 
 
October 3    City Manager Contract Approval 

Repeal of Marijuana Taxation Ordinance  
Business License Ordinance 

 
November 7 
 
December 5 
 
To Schedule/Discuss: 
Review Park Tree Board Mission and Composition  
 
Franchise Agreements – Expiration Dates 
Republic Services 6 year rolling agreement which began January 2006  
Mt. Angel Telephone agreement expires July 2031 (Ord. No. 750 § 4.4) 
N.W. Natural Gas agreement expires October 2020 
PGE agreement expires December 2023 
Wave Broadband agreement expires July 2020 
Woodburn Ambulance Service Inc. agreement expires December 2017         	 	

Item #11f

Page 65 of 65




